
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  

Planning Committee 
 
To: Councillors R Watson (Chair), Bartlett, Blanchard, 

Cuthbertson, Hill, Horton, Hyman, Jamieson-Ball, 
Macdonald, Moore, Reid, Simpson-Laing, Smallwood, 
I Waudby and Wilde 
 

Date: Thursday, 31 August 2006 
 

Time: 4.30 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 
 Please note that there will be no site visits prior to this 

meeting. 
 

1. Declarations of Interest    
 At this point, members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 1 - 14) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Planning 

Committee held on 27 July 2006. 
 
 

 



 

 
3. Public Participation    
 It is at this point in the meeting that members of the public who 

have registered their wish to speak can do so. The deadline for 
registering is by 5:00 pm on the day before the meeting. 
Members of the public can speak on specific planning 
applications or on other agenda items or matters within the remit 
of the committee. 
  
To register please contact the Democracy Officer for the meeting, 
on the details at the foot of this agenda. 
 

4. Plans List    
 This item invites Members to determine the following planning 

applications: 
 

a) York Sixth Form College  Sim Balk Lane York 
YO23 2UD (06/01343/FUL)   

(Pages 15 - 
24) 

 Application for amendments to elevations of new college 
building, formation of fourth floor roof extension and 
amendments to main college car park (alterations to scheme 
approved 4 March 2005 under reference 04/00376/FUL). 
 

b) Grays Newsagent Ltd Navigation Road York 
YO1 9UN (06/01675/FULM)   

(Pages 25 - 
44) 

 Application for erection of a four and six storey office block 
associated substation and external works (amendment to 
previously approved scheme ref: 04/00885/FUL - proposed 
apartments to be replaced with office accommodation). 
 

5. Any other business which the Chair considers 
urgent under the Local Government Act 1972.   

 

 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552030 

• E-mail – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 
 
 



 

 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
Contact details are set out above. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Minutes 

MEETING PLANNING COMMITTEE 

DATE 27 JULY 2006 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS R WATSON (CHAIR), 
BLANCHARD, CUTHBERTSON, HILL, HYMAN, 
JAMIESON-BALL, MACDONALD, MERRETT (AS 
SUBSTITUTE FOR HORTON), MOORE, REID, 
SIMPSON-LAING, B WATSON (AS SUBSTITUTE 
FOR SMALLWOOD), I WAUDBY AND WILDE  

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS BARTLETT, HORTON AND 
SMALLWOOD 

 
10. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
At this point, Members were asked to declare any personal or prejudicial 
interests they had in the business on the agenda. 
 
Councillor Merrett declared personal non-prejudicial interests in agenda 
items 4a & 4b (Council Depot, Foss Islands Road, York), in relation to any 
cycling issues, as an honorary member of the Cyclists’ Touring Club and a 
member of Cycling England. 
 
Councillor Moore declared personal non-prejudicial interests personal non-
prejudicial interests in agenda items 4a & 4b (Council Depot, Foss Islands 
Road, York) as a member of the York Natural Environment Trust. 
 
Councillor Reid declared personal prejudicial interests in agenda items 4a 
& 4b (Council Depot, Foss Islands Road, York) as her sons were employed 
by Homebase.  She left the room and took no part in the discussions and 
decisions on these items. 
 
Councillor I Waudby declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda 
item 5 (The Racecourse and Terry’s Factory Conservation Area Character 
Appraisal – Consultation Draft) as her sister in law lived in the consultation 
area. 
 

11. MINUTES  
 
Members requested that in the future long bullet-pointed lists be 
referenced with numbering. 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meetings of the Planning 

Committee held on 27 June 2006 and 6 July 2006 be 
approved and signed as a correct record. 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2Page 1



12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak, under the 
Council’s Public Participation Scheme, on general issues within the remit 
of the Committee. 
 

13. PLANS LIST  
 
Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant Director 
(Planning and Sustainable Development), relating to the following planning 
applications, outlining the proposals and relevant policy considerations and 
setting out the views and the advice of consultees and officers. 
 

13a. Council Depot, Foss Islands Road, York, YO31 7UL (06/00338/GRG3)  
 
Members considered a general regulations application, submitted by City 
of York Council, for the variation of conditions attached to the outline 
planning permission relating to the redevelopment of the Council Depot 
and adjoining land at Foss Islands Road for a retail scheme (Ref: 
06/00338/GRG3). 
 
The case officer gave an update on the application, which clarified the site 
history, described the differences between the approved scheme for the 
site and this application, and proposed the following amendments and 
additions to conditions: 

• To condition 14, to the third sentence to read, “This scheme shall be 
implemented within a period of six months of the completion of phase 
one of the development, apart from where such implementation would 
prevent the reasonable access to operating businesses on phase 2 of the 
development, and for which a variation of the requirement for 
implementation has been agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority”; 

• To conditions 15, 16, 18, 19, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 31, 32, 33, 42, 43, 
44, 45, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 59 and 60, to make 
reference to the phased implementation of the development; 

• To add a condition requiring the landscaping scheme for the green 
corridor  to be implemented and all cycle and pedestrian routes to be 
available for use prior to the first use of phase 1 of the development; 

• To add a condition requiring, prior to the commencement of phase 1 of 
the development, the submission and approval of details of any 
temporary arrangements which may be required for the provision of the 
cycle and pedestrian route across the access to the operating premises 
in phase 2 of the development. 

 
Representations were received from York Natural Environment Trust in 
objection to the application and from the applicant’s agent in support of the 
application. 
 
Some Members reiterated their concerns regarding the extent of the green 
corridor proposed for the site.  Officers advised that no changes to the 
green corridor were sought in this application.  Members noted that, since 
the consideration of the earlier applications for this site, policies relating to 

Page 2



green corridors had been strengthened in the Development Control Local 
Plan and queried whether these could now be applied to this application.  
Councillor Merrett proposed and Councillor Simpson-Laing seconded a 
motion to defer the application for provision of advice as to whether it could 
be assessed against these strengthened policies and also for the provision 
of the full wording for the amended conditions.  On being put to the vote, 
this motion was lost.   
 
Members proposed the addition of a condition requiring a management 
plan for landscaping and ecology, in perpetuity, and an informative 
requesting the developer to liaise with the York Natural Environment Trust 
(YNET) regarding the detailed landscaping plans, with the Council’s 
Landscaping Officer co-ordinating the discussions.  It was also noted that 
informative 2 in the report related to the previously approved outline 
application and was therefore no longer relevant and could be deleted. 
 
Members requested that condition 23, relating to the treatment and 
extraction of fumes, be amended to refer to all restaurant uses on the site. 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to: 
 
(a) The Secretary of State allowing the Local Planning Authority to 

determine the application; 
 
(b) The amendment of the Section 106 Agreement to refer to this 

variation application; 
 
(c) The conditions and informatives listed in the report, with the deletion 

of informative 2 and the following amended conditions: 
 

(i) Condition 14 – No development shall take place until there has 
been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority a detailed landscaping scheme which takes account of 
the loss of existing habitats, which mitigates against the losses 
incurred and which ensures the provision of a green corridor 
through the site.  The landscaping scheme shall illustrate the 
number, species, height and position of trees and shrubs to be 
removed and to be planted.  This scheme shall be implemented 
within a period of six months of the completion of the 
development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority, and apart from where such implementation 
would prevent the reasonable access to operating businesses on 
any subsequent phase of the development, and for which a 
variation of the requirement for implementation has been agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants 
which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless alternatives are 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

Page 3



Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied 
with the variety, suitability and disposition of species within the 
site. 

 
(ii) Condition 15 – No work shall commence on each phase of the 

site until the applicant has secured the implementation of a 
programme of archaeological work (a watching brief on all 
ground works by an approved archaeological unit) in accordance 
with a specification supplied by the Local Planning Authority.  
This programme and the archaeological unit shall be approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences. 

 

Reason:  The site lies within an Area of Archaeological 
Importance and the development will affect important 
archaeological deposits which must be recorded during the 
construction programme. 

 
(iii) Condition 16 – Details of all means of enclosure to each phase 

of development within the site boundaries shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 
the development commences and shall be provided before the 
development is occupied. 

 

  Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the area. 
 

(iv) Condition 18 – A detailed method of works statement relating to 
each phase of development shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority and no work on that 
phase shall commence until approval has been given to the 
works statement for that phase. This statement shall include the 
precautions to be taken to ensure that noise does not cause a 
loss of amenity for neighbouring residents. In particular the 
statement shall include the hours during which demolition, 
construction and deliveries to and from the site will be permitted.  
The approved method of works statement shall thereafter be 
complied with at all times, unless a variation of the statement is 
first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

  Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of local residents. 
 

(v) Condition 19 – The method for carrying out any piling operations 
on each phase of the development shall be agreed in writing by 
the local planning authority prior to the commencement of that 
phase.  All piling operations shall be done in accordance with 
this agreement. 

 

  Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of local residents. 
 

(vi) Condition 23 – In relation to all the uses hereby permitted there 
shall be adequate facilities for the treatment and extraction of 
fumes so that there is no adverse impact on the amenities of 
local residents by reason of fumes, odour or noise.  Details of 

Page 4



the extraction plant or machinery and any filtration system 
required shall be submitted to the local planning authority for 
approval.  Once approved it shall be installed and fully 
operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be 
appropriately maintained thereafter. 

 

  Reason: To safeguard the amenities of local residents. 
 

(vii) Condition 24 – A site investigation for each phase shall be 
undertaken based upon the findings of the desk study.  The 
investigation shall be carried out in accordance with BS10175: 
Investigation of potentially contaminated land: code of practice.  
The results of the investigation shall be submitted to  and 
approved by the local planning authority in writing prior to any 
development commencing on the site. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site. 

 
(viii) Condition 25 – A risk-based remedial strategy for each phase 

shall be developed based on the findings of the site 
investigation.  The remedial strategy shall be submitted to and 
approved by the local planning authority in writing.  The 
approved strategy shall be fully implemented prior to any 
development commencing on site. 

 

  Reason:  In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site. 

 
(ix) Condition 26 – A validation report for each phase shall be 

submitted to and approved by the local planning authority, 
detailing sample locations and contaminant concentrations prior 
to any development of that particular phase commencing on site. 

 

  Reason: In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site.  

 
(x) Condition 27 – Any contamination detected during site works on 

each phase of the development that has not been considered 
within the remedial strategy shall be reported to the local 
planning authority.  Any remediation for this contamination shall 
be agreed with the local planning authority and fully implemented 
prior to any further development of that particular phase. 

 

Reason: In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site. 

 
(xi) Condition 28 – A timetable of proposed remedial works for each 

phase of development shall be submitted to the local planning 
authority prior to any works on that particular phase being 
undertaken on the site. 

 

  Reason:  In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site. 

Page 5



 
(xii) Condition 29 – A method of sampling and validation shall be 

produced for each phase of the development to ensure imported 
and excavated materials used on site are not contaminated.  
This should include, where possible, details of the origin of such 
materials.  The methodology shall be submitted in writing and 
approved by the local planning authority prior to commencement 
of the development.  The approved methodology shall be fully 
implemented during the construction of each phase of the 
development hereby approved.  

 

Reason:  In the interests of the safe and proper development of 
the site. 

 
(xiii) Condition 31 – No phase of the development approved by this 

permission shall be commenced until: 
 

a) A site investigation has been designed for the site using the 
information obtained from the desk top study and any 
diagrammatical representations (Conceptual Model). This should 
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to that investigation being carried out on the site. 
The  investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable: 
- a risk assessment to be undertaken relating to ground and 
surface waters associated on and off the site that may be 
affected, and 

- refinement of the Conceptual Model, and 

- the development of a Method Statement detailing the 
remediation requirements 

b) The site investigation has been undertaken in accordance 
with details approved by the Local Planning Authority and a risk 
assessment has been undertaken. 
c) A Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements, 
including measures to minimise the impact on ground and 
surface waters, using the information obtained from the Site 
Investigation has been submitted to the Local Planning Authority. 
This should be approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to that remediation being carried out on the site. 
 

Reason: To ensure that the proposed site investigations and 
remediation will not cause pollution of Controlled Waters. 

 
(xiv) Condition 32 – No phase of the development approved by this 

permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision 
and implementation of a surface water run-off limitation to 
Greenfield run-off rates for each phase of the development has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by of the Local 
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved programme and details. 

 

Reason:  To prevent the increased risk of flooding. 
 

Page 6



(xv) Condition 33 – No phase of the development approved by this 
permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision 
of surface water drainage works for each phase of the 
development including details of any balancing works and off-
site works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The drainage works shall be 
completed in accordance with the details and timetable agreed. 

 

Reason:  To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring 
the provision of a satisfactory means of surface water disposal. 

 
(xvi) Condition 42 – For all manholes on the culverts, provision shall 

be made for machine access and the surrounding areas shall be 
constructed to adequately support plant and machinery, which 
may be required to deal with blockages and other maintenance 
requirements. 

 

Reason:  To enable the culverts to be maintained to minimise 
the risk of blockages occurring. 

 
(xvii) Condition 43 – Prior to the commencement of each phase of the 

development hereby approved, details shall be submitted 
showing the routes of all culverts shall be confirmed and located 
on the topographic survey. 

 

Reason:  To ensure that easement strips are correctly located. 
 

(xviii) Condition 44 – During the construction phase of each phase of 
the proposed development, 24 hour access to the inlet screens 
on the culverts within that phase shall be maintained. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of maintenance and flood prevention. 
 

(xix) Condition 45 – Prior to commencement of the use of each phase 
of the development, details shall be submitted and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, of the car park signing 
necessary as a consequence of that phase of the development.  
Such signing shall be provided to coincide with the opening of 
the car parking of each phase. 

 

  Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 

(xx) Condition 46 – Prior to the commencement of the use of each 
phase of the development, details of signing of pedestrian and 
cycle routes both to and from the site shall be submitted and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, such signing 
shall match the existing signs within the City Centre, and shall be 
provided for that phase of the development before that phase 
comes into use. 

 

  Reason:  In the interests of highway safety. 
 

Page 7



(xxi) Condition 47 – Before development of each phase of 
development commences the following details shall be submitted 
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 
 

- Segregated pedestrian/cycle route through the site 

- Security and landscaping adjacent to the cycle route 

- Other cycle and pedestrian access to (and potentially through) 
the site  
- Car parking layout, including disabled, parent & child, internal 
visibility lines.  
- Measures to provide safe crossing points within the site, 
affording priority to pedestrians and cyclists 

- Pedestrian guard railing or similar measures 

- Bus link through the site, including stop provision. 
- Green Corridor 

 

All the above such facilities for each phase shall be completed 
prior to any part of that phase of the development being brought 
into use, or alternatively in accordance with a timetable which 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 

Reason:  In the interests of safety and good highway 
management.  

 
(xxii) Condition 48 – Prior to commencement of each phase of the 

development, full details of the proposed CCTV facilities within 
the site and lighting for the car park and cycle route shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, prior to any phase of the development being brought 
into use. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of safety and visual amenity. 
 

(xxiii) Condition 49 – Prior to commencement of each phase of the 
development, a dilapidation survey for that part of the site 
affected shall be jointly undertaken with Officers of the Council, 
the results of which shall be agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of the safety and good management of 
the public highway. 

 
(xxiv) Condition 50 – Prior to each phase of the development coming 

into use, all areas used by vehicles shall be surfaced, sealed 
and positively drained within the site, in accordance with details 
which have been previously submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

 Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material onto 
the public highway. 

 
(xxv) Condition 52 – Each phase of the development shall not come 

into use until all existing vehicular crossings affected by that 

Page 8



phase not shown as being retained on the approved plans have 
been removed by reinstating the kerbing, footway and verge to 
match adjacent levels. 

 

 Reason:  In the interests of good management of the highway 
and road safety. 

 
(xxvi) Condition 53 - Prior to commencement of each phase of the 

development commencing details of the cycle parking areas for 
that phase, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
building(s) within that phase shall not be occupied until the cycle 
parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided 
within the site in accordance with such approved details, and 
these areas shall not be used for any purpose other than the 
parking of cycles. 

 

Reason:  To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion 
on the adjacent roads and in the interests of the amenity of 
neighbours. 

 
(xxvii) Condition 54 – Prior to each phase of the development coming 

into use the sight lines shown on the approved plans shall be 
provided free of all obstructions which exceed the height of the 
adjacent carriageway by more than 1.0m and shall thereafter be 
so maintained. 

 

Reason:  In the interests of road safety. 
 
(xxviii) Condition 55 – Prior to commencement of each phase of the 

development, details of the measures to be employed to prevent 
the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public 
highway from that phase and details of the measures to be 
employed to remove any such substance from the public 
highway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. Such measures as shall have been 
approved shall be employed and adhered to at all times during 
construction works on that phase. 

 

  Reason:  To prevent the egress of water and loose material 
creating a hazard on the public highway. 

 
(xxix) Condition 56 – Prior to each phase of the development coming 

into use, provision shall be made within the site for 
accommodation of delivery/service vehicles in accordance with 
details which shall have been previously submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter 
all such areas shall be retained free of all obstructions and used 
solely for the intended purpose. 

 

  Reason:  To ensure that delivery/service vehicles can be 
accommodated within the site and to maintain the free and safe 
passage of highway users. 

 

Page 9



(xxx) Condition 59 – No phase of the development hereby permitted 
shall come into use until the following highway works for that 
phase of the development (which definition shall include works 
associated with any Traffic Regulation Order required as a result 
of the development, signing, lighting, drainage and other related 
works) have been carried out in accordance with details which 
shall have been previously submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements entered into 
which ensure the same. 

 

The junctions and associated works to Foss Islands Road and 
the Link Road, as indicated within the transport assessment and 
submitted drawings by White Green Young. 

 

 Reason:  In the interests of the safe and free passage of 
highway users. 
 

(xxxi) Condition 60 – The operation and management of all the car 
park on each phase of the development shall be undertaken in 
accordance with a car park management scheme for that phase, 
which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to any part of the development being 
brought into use.  The scheme shall specify that parking is 
limited to a maximum of 2 hours and shall not be revised without 
the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Reason:  To ensure that the car park management is in 
accordance with Council policy to control long stay parking. 

 
 And the following additional conditions and informative: 
 

(i) An ‘in perpetuity’ landscape and ecology management plan 
including management responsibilities and maintenance 
schedules for the 'green corridor' and all other landscaped areas 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority prior to the 1st phase of the development 
being brought into use.  

 

Reason:  To ensure the future management, health and vitality 
of the landscaped and ecological areas throughout the lifetime of 
the development. 

 
(ii)  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority, the landscaping scheme for the green corridor to 
which condition 13 refers shall be implemented within a period of 
six months of the completion of phase one of the development 
and all cycle/pedestrian routes shall be available for use prior to 
the first use of phase one. 

 

Reason:  To achieve an acceptable form of development. 
 
 (iii)  Prior to the commencement of phase one, details of any 

temporary arrangements which may be required for the provision 
of the cycle / pedestrian route across the access to the operating 

Page 10



premises in phase 2 of the development, shall be submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
shall be implemented to ensure the cycle/pedestrian route is 
available prior to the first use of phase one. 

 

  Reason:  To achieve an acceptable form of development. 
 

(iv) Informative - In preparing the plans and details required in order 
to discharge the details required by condition 14, the developer 
is encouraged to liaise with YNET. The Local Planning Authority 
will co-ordinate these discussions and ensure YNET's 
involvement on this issue. 

 
REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 

proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to retail capacity, 
the environmental impacts and the impact on the 
highway network.   As such the proposal complies with 
Policies S3 and S4 of  the North Yorkshire County 
Structure Plan (Alteration No.3 Adopted 1995) and 
Policies SP7, SP8, S1, S2, HE4, NE7,and NE8 of the 
City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 

 
13b. Council Depot, Foss Islands Road, York, YO31 7UL (06/00333/REMM)  

 
Members considered a major reserved matters  application, submitted by 
Keyland Gregory (retail) Ltd. and Wm Morrison Supermarkets Plc., for the 
variation of condition 1 (schedule of approved plans) of the reserved 
matters decision notice for the proposed Foss Islands Retail Park to show 
an amended site layout and elevational changes (Ref: 06/00333/REMM). 
 
Representations were received from York Natural Environment Trust in 
objection to the application and from the applicant’s agent in support of the 
application. 
 
RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to: 
 
(a) The Secretary of State allowing the Local Planning Authority to 

determine the application; 
 
(b) The amendment of the Section 106 Agreement to refer to this 

variation application; 
 
(c) The conditions listed in the report, supplementing those on reserved 

matters approval 04/04381/REM. 
 
REASON: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the 

proposal, subject to the conditions listed, would not 
cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to highway safety, 
visual amenity, setting of the listed building, drainage 

Page 11



and flooding.  As such the proposal complies with 
Policies of Regional Planning Guidance Note 12, 
Revised Spatial Strategy for Yorkshire and Humber 
(2004), Policies T10 and E4 of the North Yorkshire 
County Structure Plan (Alteration No.3 Adopted 1995) 
and Policies GP1, GP3, GP4, GP11, HE2, T4, T13, NE7 
and NE8 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 

 
14. THE RACECOURSE AND TERRY'S FACTORY CONSERVATION AREA 

CHARACTER APPRAISAL - CONSULTATION DRAFT  
 
Members received a report which sought their approval of a draft character 
appraisal for the Racecourse and Terry’s Factory Conservation Area, for 
consultation.  This document was attached as Annex C of the report. 
 
A copy of the consultation leaflet was circulated to Members.  Members 
proposed a number of amendments to the draft character appraisal and 
the consultation process, as set out below. 
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the Racecourse and Terry’s Factory 

Conservation Area Character Appraisal 
(Consultation Draft), attached at Annex C of the 
report, be approved for use as a consultation 
documents, with the following amendments: 

 
(a) To include reference to the clock mechanism in 

the Terry’s clock tower; 
 

(b) To include reference to views from the river; 
 

(c) To include reference to views from National 
Cycle Route 66; 

 
(d) To include reference to views from 

Bishopthorpe Road; 
 

(e) To include reference to the views of local 
residents from nearby roads, such as 
Campleshon Road and Albemarle Road; 

 
(f) To include reference to the views of local 

residents from Mount Vale Road; 
 

(g) To amend paragraph 2.10 to clarify that 
changes to the conservation area boundaries 
were not recommended; 

 
(h) To correct paragraph 8.01 to state that Park 

Pavilion Field was to the east of Racecourse 
Road; 

 
(i) To make reference to the Knavesmire being 

part of Micklegate Stray; 

Page 12



 
(j) To change the format for chapter numbering 

from 1.0, 2.0, etc to 1, 2, etc; 
 

(k) To refer to photographs as “plates” rather than 
“figures”; 

 
(l) To append all of the maps at the end of the 

document, so that they are easy to locate; 
 

(m)To investigate the options available for colour 
printing within the available budget, or, if this 
was not possible, to improve the black and 
white print quality of the photographs; 

 
(n) To correct any typographical or grammatical 

errors; 
 
(ii) That a map showing the properties to be consulted 

be circulated to Committee Members and local 
Ward Members, to allow suggestions to be 
submitted for the inclusion of additional streets; 

 
(iii) That the following groups and organisations be 

included in the consultation: 
 

(a) Small businesses; 
 

(b) Organisations representing the hotel trade; 
 

(c) Sustrans; 
 

(d) British Waterways and other organisations 
representing river users; 

 
(e) Residents of houseboats; 

 
(f) Fulford Parish Council; 

 
(iv) That the consultation leaflet be amended to 

include: 
 

(a) The times and venues of the masterplanning 
events that the developer was holding; 

 
  (b) A question as to whether the conservation area 

boundary should be changed; 
 
(v) That the consultation period be extended to mid-

September. 
 

REASON: (a) To provide a thorough analysis of the character of 
the Conservation Area, in line with current 

Page 13



guidance from English Heritage, and to provide a 
clearly written consultation document, which is 
capable of amendment where required; 

 
(b) Following formal adoption of the final document, to 

help the formulation and determination of 
development proposals within the conservation 
area and especially the Terry’s Factory site; 

 
(c) To help the Council meet the yearly targets set by 

BVPI 219b (percentage of conservation areas in 
the local authority area with an up to date character 
appraisal). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COUNCILLOR R WATSON 
Chair  
The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 6.50 pm. 

Page 14



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 1 of 8 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Dringhouses And 

Woodthorpe 
Date: 31 August 2006 Parish: Dringhouses/Woodthorpe 

Planning Panel 
 
 
 
Reference: 06/01343/FUL 
Application at: York Sixth Form College  Sim Balk Lane York YO23 2UD  
For: Amendments to elevations of new college building, formation of 

fourth floor roof extension and amendments to main college car 
park (alterations to scheme approved 4 March 2005 under 
reference 04/00376/FUL). 

By: York College 
Application Type: Full Application 
Target Date: 10 August 2006 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1 At the Planning Committee meeting on 24 June 2004 Members resolved to grant 
planning permission (ref: 04/00376/FUL) for the erection of a new college and 
nursery with associated car parking for York College subject to the prior completion 
of a legal agreement.  The agreement was signed on 4 March 2005 and the 
permission issued on the same day. 
 
1.2 A further planning application for the variation of condition 23 to change the 
hours of use of the car park on the northern boundary and to allow the use of car 
park for service and delivery vehicles was granted permission at the Committee on 
13/12/2005. 
 
1.3 The current application seeks permission for a number of alterations to the 
approved scheme, the principal changes are: 
 

• An enlarged third floor level; 

• An enlarged fourth floor level to the northern side of the building; 

• An external storage area provided for the vehicle workshops; 

• Amendments to the general window configuration which have been revised to 
co-ordinate with proposed room and furniture layouts; 

• High level composite cladding panels have been introduced to eliminate light 
spillage;  

• Roof overhang has been re-designed due to Health and Safety construction 
and maintenance issues; and 

• Amendments to the design of the decked car park. 
 
1.4 The applicant has submitted the following statement to explain the need for the 
amendments: 
 

Agenda Item 4aPage 15



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 2 of 8 

"As the process of consultation with key users groups developed, it was clear that 
some key user groups would have specific locational requirements and operational 
needs. The spatial requirements of each key user group have therefore necessitated 
some internal amendments to the layouts of some rooms/spaces. Internal changes 
have in turn required some minor changes to the external appearance of the building 
to enable both internal layout and external appearance to co-ordinate with one 
another. All proposed amendments are required in connection with the successful 
running of College and are needed to fulfil operational requirements". 
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYGP9 
Landscaping 
  
CYC1 
Criteria for community facilities 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
INTERNAL 
 
3.1 Highway Network Management 
 
Any comments will be reported verbally. 
 
3.2 Landscape Architect 
 
I think the loss of trees proposed for the car park deck is regrettable and although 
the top deck of the car park has been reduced in size, the visual impact of this 
revised scheme results in a reduction in amenity. However given that the roof top 
trees have limited mitigation value, the change is probably not significant enough to 
refuse the application given the context and scale of the remainder of the 
development as seen in the broader landscape. 
 
3.3 Environmental Protection Unit 
 
No objections to this application. However the site is in close proximity to residential 
properties and concerns expressed regarding nearby residents being adversely 
affected by noise during any demolition, construction or refurbishment works. 
 

Page 16



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 3 of 8 

EXTERNAL 
 
3.4 Dringhouses and Woodthorpe Planning Panel 
 
No objections 
 
3.5 Bishopthorpe Parish Council 
 
The Parish opposed the siting of the college in this location originally as they 
considered that it would be too prominent and spoil one of the entrances into York. 
 
The fourth floor extension will add to its prominence. 
 
3.6 Neighbouring owners/occupiers 
 
One letter received concerning the impact of the proposals on overshadowing of 17 
Chessingham Gardens and commenting that no sunpath diagrams have been 
produced. 
 
Note: sunpath diagrams have now been prepared and the objector has been re-
notified, any further comments will be reported verbally. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
PLANNING POLICY 
 
4.1 There are no policies of the North Yorkshire County Structure Plan that are of 
direct relevance to this proposal. The site lies outside of the York Green Belt and 
within the settlement limit of the City as defined on the Proposals Map of City of York 
Development Control Local Plan. Policy C1 'Community Facilities' of Draft Local Plan 
seeks that the proposed development is of a scale and design appropriate to the 
character and appearance of the locality. 
 
4.2 Policy GP1 'Design' includes the expectation that development proposals will; 
respect or enhance the local environment; be of a density, layout, scale, mass and 
design that is compatible with neighbouring buildings and spaces, using materials 
appropriate to the area; incorporate appropriate landscaping and retain, enhance or 
create urban spaces, public views, skyline, landmarks and other features that make 
a significant contribution to the character of the area and ensure that residents living 
nearby are not unduly affected by noise, disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or 
dominated by overbearing structures. 
 
ALTERATIONS TO THE ELEVATIONS OF THE MAIN COLLEGE BUILDING 
 
Amendments specific to the Northern Elevation 
 
4.3 When the college application was originally considered neighbours, officers and 
the Members of the Committee raised concerns over the expanse of glazing that had 
been proposed on the northern elevation of the building. Particular concerns related 
to the potential for light spillage from the building as well as the potential for 

Page 17



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 4 of 8 

overlooking of nearby residential properties. To address these issues, a condition 
requiring full details of the extent and positioning of opaque glazing as well as a 
condition requiring the submission of a lighting management plan was attached to 
the original grant of planning permission.  
 
4.4 In working up their response to this condition the architect has made changes to 
the general window configuration of the northern elevation at all levels to ensure 
window heights and sizes have been reduced to minimise any overlooking of 
adjacent residential properties. At second and third floor levels the previously 
proposed large scale glazed areas have been reduced and partially replaced with 
cladding panels significantly reducing light spillage as well as the potential for 
overlooking. 
 
4.5 In addition, the re-planning of the internal spaces and uses of the building have 
resulted in other changes to the elevation. Briefly, ground floor windows to the 
northern elevation of the building have been re-designed to co-ordinate with 
kitchens, kitchen stores and kitchen changing rooms. Other ground floor windows 
have been re-planned to co-ordinate with specialist rooms behind. For example 
windows to the dance studio have been re-designed to comprise high level windows 
to provide students with a greater degree of privacy; Louvres have been added to 
the kitchen vent system as well as to ground floor plant areas;  Staircases have been 
re-planned again necessitating amendments to some windows. 
 
Amendments general to all Elevations 
 
4.6 Similar changes required of the re-planning of the internal areas of the building 
have taken place on all elevations of the building.  Whilst these have materially 
altered its appearance from that originally approved, the materials - combinations of 
brickwork, render, cedar cladding and glazing, have been retained to help to break 
up the elevations and broadly the new proposals are considered to retain the spirit of 
the architect's original designs.  
 
ALTERATIONS TO THE SIZE OF THE MAIN COLLEGE BUILDING 
 
4.7 The fourth floor level of the building has been slightly reconfigured, Members 
may recall that this floor is a recessed storey of the building.  The changes are 
chiefly towards the northern edge of the building where the footprint has increased 
by about 7m across the elevation and has encroached by between 1m and 3m 
further northwards towards the parapet.  This change is to incorporate a plant room 
that has been extended in size to accommodate additional plant required to achieve 
a rating of 'Very Good' against the BREEAM checklist. This rating was required by 
the Section 106 agreement for the development. 
 
4.8 The alternatives to extending the plant room are either: 
 

1. Housing all plant internally resulting in the displacement of teaching space 
and tutorial rooms. This was regarded as unacceptable by the College 
 because of the loss of teaching space and tutorial rooms.  
 

Page 18



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 5 of 8 

2. Locate the plant externally. Locating the plant externally would mean that 
the plant could still be seen in elevation, the potential for seeing external plant 
was considered inappropriate. 

 
4.9 The roof extension results in the plant being screened from view and also adds 
an additional safeguard in terms of any noise generated by the plant.  
 
4.10 On the northern wing of the building the second and third floors are set back to 
reduce the impact of the elevation.  The revised scheme has increased the length of 
these floor levels by about 2m across the elevation. This increases the bulk of the 
building but only very marginally.  Similarly on the northern elevation the main stair 
tower has altered shape so that it is wider than originally proposed (8.5m compared 
to 5m) but projects 1m from the face of the building compared with the approved 3m 
projection.   
 
4.11 The building remains in accordance with the height condition imposed on the 
original planning permission. 
 
4.12 The additional bulk of the plant room at roof level and the changes at third and 
fourth floor levels are not considered to either harm the appearance of the building 
nor result in the college building appearing unduly overbearing when viewed from 
adjacent land and property.  Sun path and shading diagrams have been produced to 
compare the impact of the scheme with and without the amendments (at date 21 
June for Summer and 21 December for Winter).  The diagrams show that there 
would be no material change to shading in the summer.  In winter the diagrams show 
that shading increases marginally after Midday.  The diagrams do not take account 
of the tree cover along the northern boundary of the site and it is considered that it 
could not be demonstrated that unacceptable harm would be caused to nearby 
residential property through loss of light.  
 
 
 
OTHER ALTERATIONS TO THE MAIN BUILDING 
 
4.13 Members will recall that the plan form of the building is in the form of a capital 
letter "H", with the long elevations facing north and south and courtyards facing east 
and west.  The approved plan showed a vehicle turning head and a line of newly 
planted trees in the eastern courtyard between the vehicle workshops and the sports 
hall.  In the proposed amended scheme the planting has been replaced with an 
outdoor storage area for the vehicle workshops.  The storage area would be 
enclosed within walls and is on the opposite side of the building from the nearest 
residential property.  It is considered that these alterations will not adversely affect 
the appearance of the building. 
 
ALTERATIONS TO THE MAIN CAR PARK 
 
4.14 The original permission gave approval for a double decked car park to the south 
of the main building.  The amendment seeks approval to reduce the size of the top 
deck.  The number of parking spaces would remain as approved.  
 

Page 19



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 6 of 8 

4.15 The revised scheme results in the loss of four rows of trees across the car park 
deck and all of the perimeter trees around the entire car park deck. This is a 
considerable reduction in tree numbers. The trees within the car park were provided 
mitigation for impact of the car park on views from the south. Trees in roof top 
planters do not reach a considerable size due to root and water restrictions. To this 
end the car park trees had limited mitigation value, but the numbers, to a degree, 
compensated for this.   
 
4.16 In the latest revision the top deck is reduced in length by over one quarter, thus 
reducing its impact, especially as this section comes closest to Sim Balk Lane. This 
has also allowed the row of semi-mature trees within the car park to be planted into 
the ground where they can be naturally open grown and thus provide greater 
mitigation effect. 
 
4.17 The loss of tree numbers is regrettable although the top deck has been reduced 
in size. Given that the roof top trees would have had limited mitigation value, the 
change does not impact so significantly on appearance of the site given the context 
and scale of the remainder of the development as seen in the broader landscape. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 The changes to the elevations and the fourth floor level appear to have been 
adequately justified by the applicants in terms of the future operation of the building 
and the as a response to planning conditions.  The design changes are considered 
to preserve the spirit of the original design concept for the building and would not 
have a detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the area nor have an adverse 
impact on the residential amenity of adjacent occupiers. The alterations to the car 
park are considered to be largely neutral in their impact on the visual amenity of the 
area in this sensitive edge of city location.  The proposal is considered to comply 
with policy C1, GP1 and GP9 of the Development Control Local Plan. 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 1 The materials to be used for the development shall accord with the details 

received 21 August 2006 and titled "York College - Proposed External 
Materials" unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

  
 Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance in accordance with 

policy GP1 of the Development Control Local Plan. 
 
 2 Details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of that part of the 
development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Boundary wall to the outdoor workshops. 
  
 Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these 

details. 
 

Page 20



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 7 of 8 

 3 The development shall be carried out subject to all the conditions imposed on 
planning permission 04/00376/Ful dated 4 March 2005. 

  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt as this planning permission relates solely 

to those parts of the development specifically outlined in the GVA Grimley 
letter dated 15 June 2006. 

 
 4 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans:- 
  
 02-077-(80)-006 rev PC08 - GF furniture 1/1 
 02-077-(80)-007 rev PC08 - GF furniture 2/2 
 02-077-(80)-008 rev PC07 - FF furniture 1/2 
 02-077-(80)-009 rev PC07 - FF furniture 2/2 
 02-077-(80)-010 rev PC07 - 2F furniture 1/2 
 02-077-(80)-011 rev PC07 - 2F furniture 2/2 
 02-077-(80)-012 rev PC07 - 3F furniture 1/2 
 02-077-(80)-013 rev PC07 - 3F furniture 2/2 
 02-077-(80)-014 rev PC07 - 4F furniture 1/1 
 02-077-(90)-014 rev PL1 
 02-077-(06)-006 rev C01 - roof plan 
 02-077-(08)-060 rev PL4  
 02-077-(08)-061 rev PL4  
 02-077-(08)-062 rev PL2 
 02-077-(08)-011 rev PL3 
 02-077-(08)-009 rev PL4    
 02-077-(08)-014 rev PL1 
 WT789.L03  
 WT789.L01 rev H (in so far as it relates to the decked car park only) 
  
 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to visual amenity and the living conditions of 
nearby residents. As such the proposal complies with Policies C1 and GP9 of the 
City of York Development Control Local Plan. 
 
 2. This planning permission only covers amendments to the main college building 
and the decked car park.  Any alterations to the overall detailed layout of the site and 

Page 21



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01343/FUL  Item No:  
Page 8 of 8 

the landscaping masterplan which have been submitted with the drawings attached 
to this application must be progressed through the discharge of the conditions 
imposed on the original planning permission. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Gareth Arnold City Centre/West Team Leader 
Tel No: 01904 551320 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Dringhouses

Burial Ground

Sim Hills

17
.7

m

BM 16.08m

MS

C
H

E
S

S
IN

G
H

A
M

G
ARDENS

2
1
1

3

15.8m

T
A

D
C

A
S

T
E

R
R

O
A

D
D

R
IN

G
H

O
U

S
E

S

R
O

M
A

N
R

O
A

D

18
7

1
8

9

The Wilberforce Home

St Leonard's Hospice

1
8
5

York Workshops
for the Blind

Superstore

C
yc

le
P

a
th

1

5

7

9

17

11

15

2

2
0
7

9

2

1

5

8

THE GROVE

Drain

17.1m

El

Sub Sta

235

SIM BALK LANE

10.7m

T
A

D
C

A
S

T
E

R
R

O
A

D
D

R
IN

G
H

O
U

S
E

S

Burial

Ground

R
O

M
A

N
R

O
A

D

DRINGHOUSESYORK

Dringhouses

Tank

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:2500 22/8/2006

Organisation

N

S

EWSite Plan : York College

SP 1

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 1 of 17 

COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
Committee: Planning Committee Ward: Guildhall 
Date: 31 August 2006 Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel 
 
Reference: 06/01675/FULM 
Application at: Grays Newsagent Ltd Navigation Road York YO1 9UN  
For: Erection of a four and six storey office block associated 

substation and external works (amendment to previously 
approved scheme ref: 04/00885/FUL - proposed apartments to 
be replaced with office accommodation) 

By: Grays Wharf 
Application Type: Major Full Application (13 weeks) 
Target Date: 20 October 2006 
 
1.0  PROPOSAL 
 
1.1  Members may recall that in February 2005 planning permission was granted for 
the erection of a four and six storey block of offices together with two apartments and 
associated external works on an area of unused land with a frontage to Navigation 
Road, adjacent to Wormalds Cut.  At that time it was proposed to accommodate 
approximately 4,950 sq metres (gross) of offices within a four storey "L" shaped 
building, together with two "penthouse" apartments located on a fifth and sixth floor 
in the northwest corner of the new block. Although the buildings that previously 
occupied the site have been demolished (with the benefit of conservation area 
consent) construction work has yet to commence on the proposed development.  
 
1.2  The application now submitted is an amendment to the previously approved 
scheme, and proposes to replace the apartments with offices, creating an additional 
578 sq metres (gross) of office accommodation. The application relates principally to 
the change of use of the previously approved apartments to offices, and no changes 
are proposed to the footprint of the proposed building. In order to accommodate 
commercial floor to ceiling heights, the eaves height of the six storey section of the 
building would be increased by approximately 0.8 metres to 20.7 metres, although 
this has been compensated for by a corresponding reduction in the roof pitch, 
resulting in the overall height of the building being contained within the height 
restriction imposed by the original planning permission (26.81 metres).  
 
1.3 The new application incorporates elevational changes reflecting the proposed 
commercial use of the two upper floors of the six storey building. The four storey 
section of the new block remains as previously approved. Minor changes have been 
made to the layout and configuration of the refuse storage area and electricity 
substation, the latter as a result of the statutory requirements of the electricity 
supplier. The submitted layout makes provision for 41 car parking spaces and secure 
cycle storage for 60 cycles, together with a landscaped area (17m x 17m approx) at 
the head of Wormalds Cut, all in accordance with the originally approved layout.   
 
1.4 The application site consists of approximately 0.31 hectares of land with a 
frontage of 62 metres to Navigation Road, north of its junction with Percy's Lane and 
opposite Rosemary Place. The northern boundary of the site abuts Wormalds Cut, 

Agenda Item 4bPage 25



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 2 of 17 

an open watercourse which terminates at Navigation Road, beyond which is the five 
storey Rowntree Wharf, a landmark Grade II listed building which is now in mixed 
residential/commercial use, and its associated multi-storey car park. The eastern 
boundary of the site faces directly towards residential properties fronting Navigation 
Road, forming part of Rosemary Place/Rosemary Court residential estate. The 
southern boundary abuts the former Pullman bus depot, which is in use as a covered 
car park, and which has recently been the subject of a detailed application to erect 
231 student study bedrooms in two separate blocks, planning permission for which 
was granted on 28 April 2006. To the west of the site are the offices of the York and 
County Press. 
 
1.5  The site is within the Central Historic Core conservation area. However, the 
application site itself is in a vacant, derelict and generally unsightly condition. The 
buildings which previously occupied the site, which were of no architectural merit, 
have now been demolished, leaving a cleared site. The site is also within the City 
Centre Area of Archaeological Importance. The previously approved scheme 
included the removal of eight self seeded trees (alder, sycamore and willow) from the 
waterside frontage of the site, with the new building directly abutting, and rising 
directly from, the waters edge. The approved office block is of a contemporary 
design with the external walls erected in facing brick with artstone detailing and 
incorporating a pitched, tiled roof. The taller part of the building, which it is now 
proposed to change from residential use to offices, incorporates a "square hip" 
arrangement.  
 
2.0  POLICY CONTEXT 
 
2.1  Development Plan Allocation: 
 
Areas of Archaeological Interest City Centre Area 0006 
 
Conservation Area Central Historic Core 0038 
 
City Boundary York City Boundary 0001 
 
DC Area Teams Central Area 0002 
 
Floodzone 2 Flood Zone 2 CONF 
 
Floodzone 3 Flood Zone 3  
 
 
2.2  Policies:  
  
CYGP1 
Design 
  
CYE3 
Retention of existing employment sites 
  
CYE4 

Page 26



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 3 of 17 

Employment devt on unallocated land 
  
CYHE2 
Development in historic locations 
  
CYHE10 
Archaeology 
  
CYGP6 
Contaminated land 
  
CYT4 
Cycle parking standards 
 
 
3.0  CONSULTATIONS 
 
3.1  INTERNAL 
 
HIGHWAYS (NETWORK MANAGEMENT) -  The highways and traffic issues relating 
to the development at the site were considered by officers as part of the previous 
application 04/00885/FUL. As part of the negotiations of this previous application, 
funding towards the improvement of adjacent bus stop facilities and works identified 
in the Foss Basin Masterplan were sought. Such obligations are still in place and 
from a highways perspective officers raise no objections to the proposed 
amendments. 
 
The payment was a total of £19,572 consisting of £15k for bus stop improvements 
on Walmgate and £4572 towards the Foss Basin Masterplan. The bus stop monies 
were to be paid prior to the commencement of works on site and the Foss Basin 
monies prior to first occupation of any part of the building. 
 
There are no objections to the proposed amendments subject to the re-application of 
all previous highway conditions and an appropriate mechanism to secure the 
payments referred to above. 
 
URBAN DESIGN AND CONSERVATION - There is no real, strong physical change 
to the external appearance of the building. The increase in eaves height is 
reasonable bearing in mind the previous planning permission for this site. No 
objections.  
 
ARCHAEOLOGIST - Recommends that an archaeological watching brief condition 
(ARCH2) be imposed on any planning permission.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION - The Environmental Protection Unit have no 
objection to this application, but wish to make the following comments: 
 
The original application (04/00885/FUL) incorporated residential apartments in the 
development of the site. In the response made to this application by EPU these 
apartments were identified as a concern to us due to potential loss of amenity from 

Page 27



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 4 of 17 

noise. However in this new application the apartments are no longer incorporated 
into the design of the site. As a result of this we have no further concerns with on-site 
residential amenity. 
 
Conditions are recommended relating to the following: 
 
- standard working hours condition 
- details of all machinery, plant and equipment, together with any appropriate noise 
mitigation measures, to be submitted for approval  
- an investigation of any possible contamination as a result of previous uses on the 
site, together with appropriate mitigation measures, to be submitted for approval 
 
CITY DEVELOPMENT - The site is unallocated in the 4th Set of Changes to the City 
of York Local Plan, and consequently, policy E4 (Employment Development on 
Unallocated Land) would apply in this case. This policy states that within defined 
settlement limits, employment development of an appropriate scale and design on 
vacant or derelict land would normally be acceptable where it involves infilling or 
redevelopment. The principle of the development appears to accord with this policy. 
 
In terms of assessing the suitability of the site for employment in sequential terms, 
policy SP7a (The Sequential Approach to Development) addresses the issue of the 
location of development. It states that for office developments over 400m2, new 
development should in the first instance be located within York City Centre (as 
defined on the City Centre Inset to the Proposals Map to the Local Plan), followed by 
Edge of Centre / District centres, then other out of centre locations. The site in 
question lies within the City Centre, therefore it appears to accord with the policy. 
 
Policy L1c (Provision of New Open Space in Development) requires open space to 
be required in all new commercial development of 2,500m2 and above. The 
relevance of this policy to the proposal will need to be considered.  
 
All developments are required to take account of the principles of sustainability, as 
outlined in policy GP4a (Sustainability) 
 
3.2  EXTERNAL 
 
GUILDHALL PLANNING PANEL - Comments awaited 
 
ENVIRONMENT AGENCY - Comments as for 04/00885/FUL - No objections subject 
to conditions relating to the following: 
 
- finished floor levels of the development (to protect the development from flooding) 
- surface water run-off to be limited in accordance with a scheme to be agreed (to 
protect the development from flooding) 
- provision of an oil interceptor 
- appropriate measures to be taken to avoid pollution of the water environment 
 -method of piling foundations to be agreed 
 
YORKSHIRE WATER - Comments awaited 
 

Page 28



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 5 of 17 

LOCAL RESIDENTS - No letters received at the time of drafting this report. Any 
comments received will be reported verbally. The 21 day consultation period expires 
on 4 September 2006, with the Press Notice expiring two days later on 6 September 
2006. Should planning permission be granted, it will be necessary to await the expiry 
of these periods before the formal Notice of Decision can be issued. 
 
4.0  APPRAISAL 
 
4.1  Key Issues 
 
- principle of the development 
- design issues - impact on character and appearance of conservation area 
- impact on local residents 
- highway and parking issues  
- archaeology, contaminated land, flooding 
 
4.2  The application relates to an amendment to the previously approved application 
for offices with two penthouse apartments, planning permission for which was 
granted on 10 February 2005. Although this is a new application, the starting point 
for its consideration is the fact the original planning permission remains extant and 
could still be implemented. Thus only the proposed changes to the originally 
approved scheme can realistically be considered, rather than the proposal as a 
whole.  However, any significant policy changes which have taken place since the 
original granting of planning permission can reasonably be taken into account when 
considering the proposed amendments. It is now proposed to delete the apartments 
from the scheme, and use the entire building as offices, creating an additional 578 sq 
metres (gross) of office accommodation. There are no changes to the footprint of the 
originally approved building, and only minor changes to the elevations, reflecting the 
proposed commercial use of the top two floors of the building.  
 
4.3  Regional Planning Guidance(RPG) is contained within the Draft Yorkshire and 
Humber Plan, which was submitted to Government in December 2005 and issued for 
public consultation between January and April 2006. One of the fundamental 
objectives of RPG is to strengthen the role of existing city and town centres as a key 
focus of commercial activity. In particular, Policy E2 states that the role and 
performance of existing city and town centres will be strengthened, and that city and 
town centres will be the main focus for (amongst other things) office, public services, 
business services and other uses which generate a high level of people movements. 
Policy E3 relates to the supply of land and premises for economic development and 
emphasises the need to take account of the regional pattern of projected growth in 
floorspace demand for office, retail and leisure uses, and the considerable scope for 
this to be accommodated mainly in or adjacent to city and town centres. 
 
4.4  Policy I6 of the Approved North Yorkshire Structure Plan states that industrial 
and commercial development will normally be permitted within, or where appropriate 
adjoining, existing industrial estates/areas and on sites located within, or in close 
proximity to, a built up area. Policy E3b of the City of York Draft Local Plan seeks to 
retain sites or premises either currently or previously in employment use within their 
existing use class. Policy E4 states that within defined settlement limits, planning 
permission will be granted for employment use of a scale and design appropriate to 

Page 29



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 6 of 17 

the locality where the site is vacant, derelict or underused, or it involves infilling, 
extension, redevelopment or conversion of existing buildings. 
 
4.5  Policy GP1 is a general policy relating to design and states that development 
proposals will be expected to: 
a) respect or enhance the local environment; 
b) be of a density, layout, scale, mass and design that is compatible with 
neighbouring buildings and spaces, using building materials appropriate to the 
character of the area; 
c) avoid the loss of open spaces, important gaps within development, vegetation, 
water features and other features that contribute to the quality of the local 
environment; 
d) incorporate landscaping as an integral part of the design; 
e) retain, enhance and/or create urban spaces, public views, skyline, landmarks and 
other townscape features which make a significant contribution to the character of 
the area, and take opportunities to reveal such features to public view. 
Policy GP4a requires all development proposals to have regard to the principles of 
sustainable development. 
 
4.6  The site is within a designated conservation area (Central Historic Core). When 
determining planning applications within conservation areas, the Council has a 
statutory duty to consider the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of the area. This is reflected in Policy E4 of the Approved Structure 
Plan, which states that buildings and areas of special townscape, architectural and 
historic interest will be afforded the strictest protection. Draft Local Plan Policy HE2 
relates to development within historic locations and states that within or adjoining 
conservation areas, development proposals must respect adjacent buildings, open 
spaces, landmarks and settings and have regard to local scale, proportion, detail and 
materials. The policy also requires proposals to maintain or enhance existing urban 
spaces, views, landmarks, and other townscape elements, which contribute to the 
character or appearance of the area. 
 
4.7  Policy HE10 of the Draft local Plan relates to sites within the York City Centre 
Area of Archaeological Importance and the need to ensure that archaeological 
remains are properly recorded, and that minimal disturbance takes place, when 
developments are carried out. Policy GP6 relates to planning applications for 
development on, or adjacent to, land which may have been contaminated by 
previous uses, and the need to address any issues that arise by means of an 
assessment of potential impacts and/or the imposition of planning conditions. Policy 
T4 requires all new developments to provide cycle parking in accordance with 
standards set out in Appendix "E" of the Draft Local Plan. The imposition of minimum 
parking standards is discouraged by Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 "Transport" 
(PPG13), particularly in sustainable locations that are readily accessible to means of 
transport other than the private car. PPG13 advises that developers should not be 
required to provide more car parking spaces than they themselves wish other than in 
exceptional circumstances, and encourages the use of travel plans to secure 
reductions in car usage and to increase public transport use, in addition to walking 
and cycling. 
 

Page 30



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 7 of 17 

4.8  The principle of the proposal, together with the overall size, scale, footprint, 
massing and design of the building and external areas has been accepted by virtue 
of the previous granting of planning permission in February 2005, which remains 
extant. Thus in relation to these matters, the applicant has an extremely strong 
"fallback" position in that the approved scheme could be implemented at any time. 
The reason for the proposed amendment to the originally approved scheme is that 
the letting agent appointed by the applicant to market the development has been 
approached by an organisation that has expressed an interest in taking a lease of 
the whole building. Due to their staff numbers they have a floorspace requirement 
approaching 45,000 sq feet, hence the need to change the use of the previously 
approved fifth and sixth floor apartments to office accommodation, thus increasing 
the lettable area of the building from just under 40,000 sq feet up to approximately 
44,000 sq feet. The prospective occupier of the building wishes to be located within 
the city walls and will not at present consider sites outside this location. 
 
4.9  The principle of the use of the whole building for offices in this central location is 
considered to be acceptable and fully in accordance with the Draft Yorkshire and 
Humber Regional Plan, in particular Policies E2 and E3, which seek to strengthen 
the role of existing city and town centres as a key focus of commercial activity. The 
proposed development would occupy a derelict site and would result in an increase 
in employment floorspace in comparison to the originally approved scheme, and thus 
the proposal would not conflict with Policy E3b of the Draft Local Plan, which seeks 
to protect existing or approved employment uses, or with Policy E4, which generally 
permits employment uses of an appropriate scale and design (within settlement 
limits) where the site is vacant, derelict, or underused.    
 
4.10 In terms of the scale, massing, design and external appearance of the building, 
the location of the site within the Central Historic Core conservation area is an 
important consideration in this case. However, the overall appearance of the 
proposed building is not significantly different from that which was previously 
approved, the principal variation being the slight increase in the eaves height of the 
six storey section in order to provide commercial floor to ceiling heights in the new 
offices, and to accommodate the various services within floor/ceiling voids. However, 
this has been compensated for by a corresponding reduction in the roof pitch of this 
section of the building, and thus the overall height of the building has been contained 
within the height restriction imposed on the original planning permission (26.81 
metres). The proposal also incorporates amendments to the originally proposed 
elevations on the fifth and sixth floors, reflecting the proposed change to commercial 
use. The remainder of the building, however, remains substantially unchanged from 
that which was originally approved. It is not considered that the proposed 
amendments to the originally approved building would have any significant or 
detrimental impact on the character or appearance of the conservation area.  
 
4.11 The previously approved scheme included the removal of eight self-seeded 
trees (alder, sycamore and willow) from the waterside frontage of the site, with the 
new building directly abutting, and rising directly from, the waters edge. The scheme 
did, however, incorporate new planting along the western boundary of the site, within 
the site itself, and also within a landscaped/seating area (17 metres x 17 metres 
approx) at the head of Wormalds Cut. The revised application retains all of these 

Page 31



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 8 of 17 

features, and does not increase the number of car parking spaces within the site, 
which has been maintained at 41, including three disabled parking spaces.  
 
4.12  In terms of sustainability, in addition to being located on a brownfield site in a 
central location close to public transport routes, the design of the building has been 
awarded an "excellent" rating under the BREAM (Building Research Environmental 
Assessment Method) system of evaluating issues of sustainable construction at a 
global and local level. In addition to sustainable construction methods, which include 
the use of timber from sustainable sources, a metered water supply will be used with 
fittings and fixtures designed to reduce the consumption and wastage of water. A 
particular feature of the building is the inclusion of a shower on every floor, 
encouraging more and longer journeys to work by cycle.    
 
4.13  It is not considered that the revised proposal would have any significantly 
additional impact on the occupiers of adjacent residential properties, particularly 
bearing in mind that the overall height of the building would be contained within the 
previously imposed height restriction. The section of the building that would be 
altered is approximately 43 metres away from the nearest residential properties in 
Rowntree Wharf (across Wormalds Cut), and approximately 66 metres from the 
nearest properties in Navigation Road, and thus the additional visual impact is likely 
to be minimal. The number of car parking spaces on the site has not been increased, 
thus the number of vehicle movements associated with the use is unlikely to 
increase significantly, although it is accepted that there may be an increase in the 
number of pedestrian/cycle movements to and from the site. However, this is only 
likely to improve the vitality of the area and increase levels of security and 
surveillance for the benefit of the whole population. When the original application 
was considered, concern had been expressed by the Environmental Protection Unit 
in relation to the proximity of the proposed apartments to the York and County Press 
offices to the west of the site, and the associated night time noise nuisance. Clearly, 
the removal of the apartments from the scheme and their replacement by offices has 
effectively eradicated this problem.    
 
4.14  The Fourth Set of Changes to the City of York Draft Local Plan were approved 
for development control purposes in April 2005, two months after the original grant of 
planning permission in February of the same year. One of the more significant 
changes was the additional requirement for commercial developments over 2,500 sq 
metres (gross) to make provision for the open space needs of future occupiers 
(Policy L1c). However, the revised application would result in only an additional 578 
sq metres of commercial floor space, significantly less than the threshold referred to 
within Policy L1c. Although the floor space of the whole building is above the 
threshold in Policy L1c, it is not considered that a contribution towards the provision 
of open space would be justified in this instance, bearing in mind that the (still extant) 
original planning permission pre-dates the changes to the Draft Local Plan.   
 
4.15  The site is within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance, and the 
Council's Archaeologist has recommended that an archaeological watching brief 
condition be imposed on any planning permission that may be granted. A 
contaminated land report submitted with the previous application indicated that there 
could be localised areas of contamination as a result of previous use(s) of the site, 
and appropriate conditions were imposed in order to address this issue. Although I 

Page 32



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 9 of 17 

understand that some preliminary work in this respect has been carried out, involving 
the removal of old fuel tanks, none of the conditions have been formally discharged 
and thus it will be necessary for them to be re-imposed in the event that planning 
permission is granted. The issue of flooding was fully considered in relation to the 
previous application and was addressed through the imposition of a minimum floor 
level condition. Again, this could be re-imposed, and it is not considered necessary 
to re-consider this matter bearing in mind the extant nature of the original planning 
permission.   
 
4.16  The highway and traffic issues relating to the development of the site were 
considered as part of the previous application. In terms of parking, Planning Policy 
Guidance Note 13 "Transport" (PPG13) states that minimum parking standards 
should not be imposed, and that developers should not be required to provide more 
spaces than they themselves wish other than in exceptional circumstances. PPG13 
also promotes the widespread use of travel plans in order to secure reductions in car 
usage and to increase public transport use, in addition to walking and cycling. The 
proposed development would provide 41 on-site car parking spaces (including three 
disabled bays), which is identical to the previous application. Although this figure is 
lower than the theoretical maximum, the site is considered to be in a highly 
sustainable location with good access to public transport services. Bus stop facilities 
are available within 300 metres on Walmgate, which are served by a number of high 
frequency services. Alternatively, the city centre is within walking distance with wide 
access to a number of bus services. 
 
4.17  The development provides covered and secure cycle parking to a high 
standard for staff and visitors. A travel plan framework was submitted with the 
previous application, and would form the basis of a full company travel plan, which 
could be secured by condition. The travel plan framework has been assessed and 
officers are confident that it can be enforced and will work to actively reduce car 
borne travel to and from the site. The site would be served by a new access from 
Navigation Road, which offers adequate visibility and is of a suitable design to serve 
the proposed development. The access will necessitate the relocation of an existing 
speed hump. The cost of these works is to be met by the applicant and the details of 
the new location will be secured through an appropriate condition. 
 
4.18  As part of the negotiations on the previous application, funding towards the 
improvement of the adjacent bus stop facilities (in Walmgate) and works identified in 
the Foss Basin Masterplan were sought. The payment was a total of £19,572 
consisting of £15,000 for bus stop facilities in Walmgate and £4,572 towards the 
Foss Basin Masterplan. The bus stop monies were to be paid prior to the 
commencement of works on site and the Foss Basin monies prior to first occupation 
of any part of the building, and were secured by means of a Section 106 Agreement. 
These obligations remain outstanding and will, therefore, be applied to the revised 
proposal. From a highways perspective, no objections are raised to the proposal 
subject to the imposition of all previous highway conditions and an appropriate 
mechanism to secure the funding referred to above. 
 
5.0  CONCLUSION 
 

Page 33



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 10 of 17 

5.1  Planning permission has already been granted for the erection of approximately 
5,000 sq metres of offices on this site, incorporating two penthouse apartments on 
the fourth and fifth floors. It is considered that there are no fundamental policy 
objections to the whole of the building being used as offices, and it is not considered 
that the design changes required to achieve this, which are relatively minor, would 
detract from the character or appearance of the conservation area. Car parking 
provision has been maintained at previous levels, and it is not considered that the 
amenity or living conditions of local residents would be significantly affected by the 
proposed amendments to the original proposal. As none of the conditions imposed 
on the previous planning permission have been discharged (work has not yet 
commenced on the development proper), it will be necessary to re-impose the same 
(or similar) conditions on this new planning permission. This would include a 
mechanism to secure funding of £19,572, consisting of £15,000 for bus stop 
improvements in Walmgate and £4,572 towards the Foss Basin Masterplan. 
 
 
6.0  RECOMMENDATION:   Approve 
 
 
1 TIME2  
  
 2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance 

with the following plans:- 
  
 283 - 04 - 1007 Rev C received 17 August 2006 - ground floor plan and site 

layout  
 283 - 04 - 1000 Rev E received 17 August 2006 - ground floor layout 
 283 - 04 - 1001 Rev D received 21 July 2006 - first floor layout 
 283 - 04 - 1002 Rev D received 21 July 2006 - second floor layout 
 283 - 04 - 1003 Rev D received 21 July 2006 - third floor layout 
 283 - 04 - 1004 Rev D received 21 July 2006 - fourth floor layout 
 283 - 04 - 1005 Rev D received 21 July 2006 - fifth floor layout  
 283 - 04 - 1010 Rev B received 21  July 2006 - proposed elevations 
 283 - 04 - 1011 received on 21 July 2006 - typical sections 
 283 - 04 - 1009 Rev D received on 17 August 2006 - proposed sub-station 
  
 or any plans or details subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority as amendment to the approved plans. 
  
 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is 

carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
3 VISQ8  
  
4 VISQ7  
  
 5 Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development and the works shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

Page 34



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 11 of 17 

  
 Typical window details 
 Typical glazed bay details 
 Boundary wall details 
  
 Reason:  So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these 

details. 
 
 6 Notwithstanding the information contained on the approved plans, the height 

of the approved development shall not exceed 20.61 metres (four storey 
block) and 26.81 metres (six storey block), as measured from existing ground 
level. Before any works commence on the site, a means of identifying the 
existing ground level on the site shall be agreed in writing, and any works 
required on site to mark that ground level accurately during the construction 
works shall be implemented prior to any disturbance of the existing ground 
level. Any such physical works or marker shall be retained at all times during 
the construction period. 

  
 Reason: To establish existing ground level and therefore to avoid confusion in 

measuring the height of the approved development, and to ensure that the 
approved development does not have an adverse impact on the character of 
the surrounding area. 

 
 7 No development shall take place until there has been submitted and approved 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme for the layout, 
landscaping, future maintenance and management of the landscaped/seating 
area shown on the approved drawing. The scheme shall illustrate the layout of 
the area, and shall provide details of any hard landscaping, seating and litter 
bins to be provided, together with the number, species, height and position of 
trees and shrubs to be planted.  This scheme shall be implemented within a 
period of six months of the completion of the development.  Any trees or 
plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased 
shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and 
species, unless alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 

  
 Reason:  In order to ensure that an adequate amenity area and associated 

landscaping is provided within the site. 
 
8 LAND1  
  
 9 Prior to the development hereby approved being brought into use, boundary 

fences, walls and railings shall be erected in the locations indicated on the 
approved drawings, and shall be thus maintained. 

  
 Reason: To provide a satisfactory appearance to the development. 
 
10 ARCH2  
  

Page 35



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 12 of 17 

11 HWAY10  
  
12 HWAY19  
  
13 HWAY21  
  
14 The development shall not be brought into use until all existing vehicular 

crossings not shown as being retained on the approved plans have been 
removed by reinstating the kerb and footway to match adjacent levels. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of good management of the highway and road 

safety. 
 
15 HWAY31  
  
16 The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the following 

highway works (which definition shall include works associated with any 
Traffic Regulation Order required as a result of the development, signing, 
lighting, drainage and other related works) have been carried out in 
accordance with details which shall have been previously submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements entered 
into which ensure the same. 

  
 (i) Relocation of speed bump 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users. 
 
17 Prior to any works commencing on site, a dilapidation survey of the highways 

adjoining the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council, the results of 
which shall be agreed in writing with the local planning authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the safety and good management of the public 

highway 
 
18 Within 6 months of occupation of the site, a full company travel plan shall 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The travel plan shall be developed and implemented in line with 
local, national guidelines and the travel plan framework submitted with 
application 04/00885/FUL. Within 12 months of occupation of the site a first 
year staff travel survey shall have been submitted and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. Results of yearly staff travel surveys shall then be 
submitted annually to the authority's travel plan officer for approval. 

  
 Reason: To ensure the development complies with Central Government 

advice contained in Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 - "Transport", and to 
ensure adequate provision is made for the movement of vehicles, 
pedestrians, cycles and other modes of transport to and from the site, 
together with provision of parking on site for these users. 

 

Page 36



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 13 of 17 

19 All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including 
deliveries to and dispatch from the site, shall be confined to the following 
hours: 

  
  Monday to Friday  08.00 to 18.00 
  Saturday   09.00 to 13.00  
  Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays 
  
 Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents 
 
20 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on 

the use hereby permitted, which is audible outside of the site boundary when 
in use, shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. These 
details shall include maximum sound levels (LAmax(f)) and average sound 
levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation 
measures.  All such approved machinery, plant and equipment shall not be 
used on the site except in accordance with the prior written approval of the 
local planning authority.  The machinery, plant or equipment and any 
approved noise mitigation measures shall be fully implemented and 
operational before the proposed use first opens and shall be appropriately 
maintained thereafter. 

  
 Reason: To protect the amenity of local residents 
 

21 Contaminated land 
 

a. A desk study shall be undertaken in order to identify any potentially 
contaminative uses which have or are currently occurring on the site and other 
relevant information. This shall include a site description and a site walkover 
and shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to 
development of the site. Informative: This should, where possible date back to 
1800. The desk study should also include a diagrammatical representation 
(Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, pathways 
and receptors  

  
 b. A site investigation shall be undertaken based upon the findings of the desk 

study. The investigation shall be carried out in accordance with BS10175: 
Investigation of potentially contaminated land: code of practice. The results of 
the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority in writing prior to any development commencing on the site. The 
investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable: 

  
 - a risk assessment to be undertaken relating to ground and surface waters 

associated on and off the site that may be affected, and 
 - refinement of the Conceptual Model, and 
 - the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation 

requirements 
  
 c. A risk-based remedial strategy shall be developed based on the findings of 

the site investigation. The remedial strategy shall be submitted to and 

Page 37



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 14 of 17 

approved by the local planning authority in writing. The approved strategy 
shall be fully implemented prior to any development commencing on site. 
Informative: The remedial strategy shall have due regard for UK adopted 
policy on risk assessment and shall be developed in full consultation with the 
appropriate regulator(s). 

  
 d. A validation report shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning 

authority, detailing sample locations and contaminant concentrations prior to 
any development commencing on site. 

  
 e. Any contamination detected during site works that has not been considered 

within the remedial strategy shall be reported to the local planning authority. 
Any remediation for this contamination shall be agreed with the local planning 
authority and fully implemented prior to any further development of the site. 

  
 Reason: To protect human health, controlled waters and the wider 

environment.  
 
22 The development of the site shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved Method Statement. 
  
 Reason: To ensure that the development complies with approved details in 

the interests of protection of Controlled Waters. 
 
23 Upon completion of the remediation detailed in the Method Statement a report 

shall be submitted to the LPA that provides verification that the required works 
regarding contamination have been carried out in accordance with the 
approved method Statement(s). Post remediation sampling and monitoring 
results shall be included in the report to demonstrate that the required 
remediation has been fully met. Future monitoring proposals and reporting 
shall also be detailed in the report. 

  
 Reason: To protect Controlled Waters by ensuring that the remediation site 

has been reclaimed to an appropriate standard. 
 
24 Development approved by this permission shall not be commenced unless the 

method for piling foundations has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the local planning authority. The piling shall thereafter be undertaken only 
in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason: The site is contaminated or potentially contaminated and piling 

foundations could result in the contamination of groundwater in the underlying 
aquifer. 

 
25 A scheme shall be produced to either remove or make safe the underground 

fuel tanks and any associated pipe work from the site in accordance with 
Health and Safety Guidance Note 41 -"Petrol Filling Stations:Construction and 
Operation", in full consultation with City of York Council petroleum officers and 
contaminated land officer. A method statement and remedial strategy shall be 

Page 38



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 15 of 17 

submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to 
the commencement of this work. 

  
 Reason: To protect human health and the wider environment. 
 
26 Floor levels of the development shall be set at least 600mm above the highest 

recorded flood level of 9.98 metres above Ordnance Datum. 
  
 Reason: To protect the development from flooding. 
 
27 No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a 

scheme for the provision and implementation of surface water run-off 
limitation has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented in complete accordance with the 
approved details. 

  
 Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding. 
 
28 Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or 

soakaway system, all surface water drainage from parking areas and 
hardstandings shall be passed through an oil interceptor installed in 
accordance with a scheme previously submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority. Roof water shall not pass through the interceptor. 

  
 Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
29 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, no building 

or other obstruction shall be located over or within 6.5 metres either side of 
the centre line of the main/sewer i.e. a total protected strip width of 13 metres, 
that crosses the site. 

  
 Reason:  In order to allow sufficient access for maintenance and repair work 

at all times. 
 
30 The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and 

surface water. 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of satisfactory and sustainable drainage. 
 
31 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of 

disposal of foul and surface water drainage, including details of any balancing 
works and off-site works, have been submitted to and approved by the local 
planning authority. 

  
 Reason:  To ensure that the development can be properly drained. 
 
32 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the local planning authority, there 

shall be no piped discharge of surface water from the development prior to the 
completion of the approved surface water drainage works, and no buildings 

Page 39



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 16 of 17 

shall be occupied or brought into use prior to the completion of the approved 
foul drainage works. 

  
 Reason:  To ensure that no foul or surface water discharges take place until 

proper provision has been made for their disposal. 
 
33 Prior to the commencement of the development, a method statement shall be 

submitted and agreed in writing with the local planning authority specifying 
measures to be taken to avoid pollution of the adjacent watercourse during 
the construction works. The agreed measures shall be carried out in their 
entirety and shall be maintained throughout the duration of the construction 
works, or such other time period as may be agreed in writing by the local 
planning authority. 

  
 Reason: To avoid pollution of the adjacent watercourse. 
 
 
7.0  INFORMATIVES: 
Notes to Applicant 
 
 1. REASON FOR APPROVAL 
  
 In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the proposal, subject to the 
conditions listed above, would not cause undue harm to interests of acknowledged 
importance, with particular reference to: 
  
 - principle of the development 
 - design issues - impact on character and appearance of conservation area 
 - impact on local residents 
 - highway and parking issues  
 - archaeology, contaminated land, flooding 
  
 As such the proposal complies with Policies I6 and E4 of the North Yorkshire 
County Structure Plan (Alteration No.3 Adopted 1995) and Policies GP1, E3, E4, 
HE2, HE10, GP6 and T4 of the City of York Local Plan Deposit Draft. 
 
 2. INFORMATIVE:  
 
 You are advised that prior to starting on site consent will be required from the 
Highway Authority for the works being proposed, under the Highways Act 1980 
(unless alternatively specified under the legislation or Regulations listed below).  For 
further information please contact the officer named: 
  
 Works in the highway - Vehicle Crossing - Section 184 - Mr S Partington 
(01904) 551361 
 Works in the highway - Relocation of speed bump - Section 278 - Mr M 
Kitchen (01904) 551336 
 
 3. DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION - INFORMATIVE 
  

Page 40



 

Application Reference Number: 06/01675/FULM  Item No:  
Page 17 of 17 

 The developer's attention should also be drawn to the various requirements 
for the control of noise on construction sites laid down in the Control of Pollution Act 
1974.  In order to ensure that residents are not adversely affected by air pollution 
and noise, the following guidance should be attached to any planning approval: 
  
 i) The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with 
the general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228: Part 1: 1997, a code of 
practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites" and in 
particular Section 10 of Part 1 of the code entitled "Control of noise and vibration". 
  
 ii) All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order 
to minimise disturbance.  All items of machinery powered by internal  combustion 
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained 
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions. 
  
 iii) The best practicable means, as defined by Section 72 of the Control of 
Pollution Act 1974, shall be employed at all times, in order to minimise noise 
emissions. 
  
 iv) All reasonable measures shall be employed in order to control and 
minimise dust emissions, including sheeting of vehicles and use of water for dust 
suppression. 
  
 v) Any asbestos containing materials shall be removed by licensed 
contractors to a licensed disposal site. 
  
 vi) There shall be no bonfires on the site. 
 
Contact details: 
Author: Simon Glazier Development Control Officer 
Tel No: 01904 551351 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Garage

WB

El Sub Sta

Corpn

Yd

8.8m

BM 9.31m

Playground

BM 10.38m

ROSEMARY PLACE

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

COURT

N
A

V
IG

A
T

IO
N

R
O

A
D

10.4m

Wormald's Cut

11.6m

H
U

R
S

T
'S

Y
A

R
D

Garage

PH

P
A

V
E

R
L

A
N

E

PERCY'S LANE

Hall

St Margaret's

Church

Building

Grave Yard

B
M

12.85m

ST MARGARET'S

TERRACE

4
8

to
5
8

1

23

29

31

77

75

73

69
67

65

1a

1

3

2

2a

63
61

57

1
1

72

74

84
86

88 to 96

F
O

S
S

IS
L

A
N

D
S

1

132to142

1
0
4

to
1
1
4

118

2to12

116

120to130

5 to 17

3

1

8
8

to
9
8

1
0
2 3

3

1
0
0 3

1

1 to 6

7
6

to
8
6

6
4

to
7
4

6
2

6
0

26to291

Posts

Bol

Bols Bols

59

1 to 61

Navigation Wharf

3

Car Park

Car Park

1
to

3

14
16

18
to

28

7
to

12

1
7

to
2
2

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

C
T

R
O

S
E

M
A

R
Y

P
L
A

C
E

1
3

to
1
6

Y
O

R
K

NAVIGATION ROAD

8.8m

144

154
to

Garage

SCALE

Originating Group

DATE

Drawing No.

c Crown Copyright. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

9,St.Leonards Place,York,YO1 2ET

Telephone: 01904 613161

Project

Produced from the 1993 Ordnance Survey 1:1250 mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office

DRAWN BY JB

York City Council.LA 1000 20818

1:1250 22/8/2006

Organisation

N

S

EWSite Plan : Navigation Road

SP 2

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4a York Sixth Form College  Sim Balk Lane York YO23 2UD (06/01343/FUL)
	York College Plan

	4b Grays Newsagent Ltd Navigation Road York YO1 9UN (06/01675/FULM)
	Grays Newsagent Plan


